
Agricultural Advisory Committee
AGENDA

 
Thursday, December 10, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

(a)   The purpose of this Meeting is to consider certain Development Applications as
noted on this meeting Agenda.

(b)   The Reports to Committee concerning the subject development applications are
available on the City's website at www.kelowna.ca.

(c)    All representations to the Agricultural Advisory Committee form part of the
public record.

(d)   As an Advisory Committee of Council, the Agricultural Advisory Comittee will
make a recommendation of support or non-support for each application as part of the
public process.  City Council will consider the application at a future date and,
depending on the nature of the file, will make a decision or a recommendation to the
Agricultural Land Commission.

2. Applications for Consideration

2.1 2115 Rutland Road, A15-0013 - Kent-Macpherson (Bikar Johal/City of Kelowna) 3 - 32

The applicant is requesting permission from the Agricultural Land Commission
(ALC) to exclude portions of the following properties from the Agricultural
Land Reserve: - Lot 1 Section 35 TWP26 ODYD Plan 4375 - Lot 11 Section 35
TWP 26 ODYD Plan 4375 - Lot 12 Section 35 TWP ODYD Plan 4375

2.2 395 Hereron Road, A15-0007 - Brenda Dureault 33 - 60

The applicant is requesting permission from the Agricultural Land Commission
(ALC) to permit a non-farm use for recreational vehicle useage on Lot 14,
District Lot 123, ODYD, Plan KAP680009, at 395 Hereron Road.

3. Minutes 61 - 71

Approve Minutes of the Meeting of Novmeber 12, 2015.

1

http://www.kelowna.ca/


4. Referrals

None

5. Old Business

Ministry of Agriculutre - "Regulating Agri-tourism and Farm Retail Sales in the
Agricultural Land Reserve.

6. New Business

Update - Okanagan Agricultural Adaption Strategies Workshop

7. Next Meeting

January 14, 2016

8. Termination of Meeting

2



COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
 

Date: December 10, 2015 

RIM No. 1210-21 

To: Agricultural Advisory Committee (AAC) 

From: Community Planning Department (MS) 

Application: A15-0013 Owner:  
Bikar Johal 
City of Kelowna 

Address: 2115 Rutland Road Applicant: Kent-Macpherson 

Subject: 
Application to the ALC to exclude 1.9 ha three properties from the ALR, which 
will be isolated from other ALR lands by the Rutland Road extention.  

 

1.0 Purpose 

The applicant is requesting permission from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) to exclude 
portions of the following properties from the Agricultural Land Reserve: 
 
- Lot 1 Section 35 TWP26 ODYD Plan 4375 
- Lot 11 Section 35 TWP 26 ODYD Plan 4375 
- Lot 12 Section 35 TWP ODYD Plan 4375 

2.0 Proposal 

The applicant is requesting approval to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) to exclude 
portions of three properties from the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR), which will be isolated from 
other ALR properties by the Rutland Road Extention, in accordance with Schedule ‘A’. 

2.1 Background 

Since the 1990s, the transportation plan for Reids Corner has included the realignment of Rutland 
Road to connect with Acland Road to the northeast. This alignment bisects three properties in 
the ALR. Through an application for exclusion for Lot 12, Plan 4375 in 1996, the ALC provided 
support in principle of the plan, and of the exclusion for the properties west of the realignment, 
once the design and road location had been finalized. The Rutland Road Alignment was 
determined and confirmed through the ALC Resolution #295/2014, whereby the Commission 
approved the exclusion of 2.6 ha of land (ALC File #53711) for the purpose of Highway 97 
expansion and the Realignment of Rutland Road. 

2.2 Site Context 

The subject properties are located in the Rutland Sector of the City and are within the 
Agricultural Land Reserve.  The Future Land Use of the properties is Service Commercial.  The 
portions of the properties in question are zoned A1 – Agriculture 1 (Maps 1 – 7, below) and are 
within the Permanent Growth Boundary.  The properties are level with a slight grade of 

3



A15-0013 – Page 2 

 
 

approximately 1% from a high point on the northeast corner of 219 Old Vernon road to a low at 
the west property line of 2115 Rutland Road. 

Parcel Summary – 2115 Rutland Road: 

 Parcel Size: 0.91 ha (2.26 acres) 
 
Parcel Summary – 175 Old Vernon Road: 

 Parcel Size: 1.21 ha (3 acres) 
 
Parcel Summary – 219 Old Vernon Road Road: 

 Parcel Size: 0.89 ha (2.19 acres) 
 
Elevation Range: 409 to 406 metres above sea level (masl) (approx.) 
 

2.3 Project Description 

The Rutland Road Extension is designed to eliminate a dangerous corner at Old Vernon Road and 
Sexsmith. The new Rutland Road will make a defensible boundary for the ALR properties to the 
east. Both Council and staff supported the 1995 application for exclusion, and have endorsed the 
future land use of the properties as commercial properties in previous and current Official 
Community Plans (including OCPs from 1985 to 2004, 1994 to 2013, and 2000 to 2020). In 
addition, the lands proposed for exclusion lie within the City’s Permanent Growth Boundary. The 
proposed alignment is shown in Map 1, below. 

Map 1 – Proposed Rutland Road Alignment 

 

4



A15-0013 – Page 3 

 
 

Map 2 - Neighbourhood 

 
 

Map 3 – Subject Properties 

 
 

  

Highway 97  

Subject 
Properties 
 

Sexsmith Road 
Old Vernon Road 

Acland Road 
 

Rutland Road 
 

Subject Properties 
 

5



A15-0013 – Page 4 

 
 

Map 4 – Permanent Growth Boundary 

 

 
Map 5 – Transportation Plan – 20 Year 

 

 

 
  

Permanent 
Growth 

Boundary 

Subject Properties 

Highway 97 N 

4 Lane Arterial 

Rutland Road 

Old Vernon Road 

Acland Road 

6



A15-0013 – Page 5 

 
 

Map 6 – Agricultural Land Reserve 

 

 

2.4 Neighbourhood Context 

The subject property lies within the Service Commercial Area for land use according to the 
Official Community Plan. The properties to the north and south / southwest are also within the 
Service Commercial Future Land Use.  The properties to the south / southeast are within the ALR 
and within the Resource Protection Area (REP) Future Land Use designation.  

Zoning and land uses adjacent to the property are as follows: 

Table 1:  Zoning and Land Use of Adjacent Property 

Direction Zoning ALR Land Use 

North 
C2 – Commercial 2 

I2 – Industrial 2 
No 

Vacant Land / Commercial 

Industrial 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 No/Yes 
Vacant Land / Residential / 

Agriculture 

East A1 – Agriculture 1  Yes Agriculture   

West I1/I2 – Industrial 1 and 2 No Industrial 

 

  

Subject Properties 

ALR 
(Typical) 

ALR 
(Typical) 

7



A15-0013 – Page 6 

 
 

Map 7 – Future Land Use 

 
 

2.5 Agricultural Land Capability 

According to the BC Land Classification Inventory, the property is Class 3 land with limitations 
due to soil moisture deficits (A) and soil structure limitations (D).  Soil moisture deficits are 
generally considered improvable with the addition of irrigation.  Soil structure limitations are 
generally considered unimprovable.  A soil structure limitation is given to soils that may be 
difficult to till, have insufficient aeration or distribute water slowly.  With improvements, the 
property can be improved to Class 3 with soil structure (D) limitations (Map – Land Capability, 
attached). 

2.6 Soil Capability 

Soil Capability of the property (Map – Soil Capability, attached) indicates that the soils are 
Glenmore (GL). These soils occur on nearly level to moderate slopes.  They are typically fine or 
moderately fine textured, stone free glacial lake deposits.  Surface and subsurface textures range 
from silty clay loam to clay loam.  Sandy or gravel lenses may be present at depths greater than 2 
metres. Glenmore soils are fairly well suited for most agricultural crops, and are stone free, have 
good water holding capacity and are relatively fertile. Most land with Glenmore soils are farmed 
for hay or tree fruits1. 

  

                                                
1
 MOE, 1983. Soils of the Okanagan and Similkameen Valleys – MOE Technical Report 18.  

http://sis.agr.gc.ca/cansis/publications/surveys/bc/bc52/bc52_report.pdf 

 

Service 
Commercial Resource Protection 

Area 

Industrial 

Park 

Subject Properties 

8

http://sis.agr.gc.ca/cansis/publications/surveys/bc/bc52/bc52_report.pdf


A15-0013 – Page 7 

 
 

3.0 Public Notification 

The applicant has complied with the requirements of the ALC regarding exclusion notification. 
They have: 

 posted signage on their property of the application for exclusion; 

 advertised the application in the Kelowna Daily Courier (October 23rd and October 30th, 
2015); and  

 sent registered mail to all neighbours immediately adjacent their property. 

 

4.0 Community Planning 

The Official Community Plan indicates support for exclusions where they satisfy civic objectives. 
The Future Land Use of Service Commercial is supported on the lands that will be orphaned by 
the Rutland Road Extension. In addition, these lands are identified within Permanent Growth 
Boundary. 

The AAC is also asked to consider and make recommendations which reflect the scenario as 
proposed.  The AAC should consider the impacts of a non-agricultural use and suggest mitigation 
opportunities of adjacent agricultural lands should the ALC choose to support the proposed 
exclusion. 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:  Todd Cashin, Community Planning Department Manager 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning & 
Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Schedule ‘A’ 
Subject Property Map 
Agricultural Capability Map 
Soil Map 
Applicant ALC Act Application for Exclusion - Supplementary Information 
ALC Resolution 295/2014 

9



SCHEDULE 'A'                 A15-0013

10



11



0:3AD  :    (0:3D   :   )
Area (ha): 0.9

Percent: 100 % 

RU
TL

AN
D 

RD
 N

COMMERCIAL DR

Land Capability = Brown/ Soil Class = Green

12



0GL/  
Area (ha): 0.9
Percent: 100%

RU
TL

AN
D 

RD
 N

COMMERCIAL DR

Land Capability = Brown/ Soil Class = Green

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
 

Date: December 10th, 2015 

RIM No. 1210-21 

To: Agricultural Advisory Committee (AAC) 

From: Community Planning Department (AC) 

Application: A15-0007 Owner:  Brenda Dureault 

Address: 395 Hereron Rd Applicant: Brenda Dureault 

Subject: Application to the ALC for a non-farm use application  

 

1.0 Purpose 

The applicant is requesting permission from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) to permit a 
non-farm use for recreational vehicle useage on Lot 14, District Lot 123, ODYD, Plan KAP680009, 
at 395 Hereron Road. 

2.0 Proposal 

The applicant is proposing ten (10) agri-tourist accommodation units in the form of a 
Recreational Vehicle (RV) park. 

3.0 Background 

A non-farm use application to the ALC is necessary to permit agri-tourist accommodations when a 
property does not have farm status or where the agri-tourism use has the potential to be the 
primary use. If the application for the non-farm use is successful with the ALC then a rezoning 
application is also necessary to the ‘A1t’ zone in order to permit the agri-tourist 
accommodations. 
 
The title for the subject property (Dureault farm) was transferred by a family member (Mr. Rene 
Dureault) in 2008 to the current property owner. Before 2000, the agricultural parcel was quite 
large before being subdivided into commercial and industrial lots. The portion of the property in 
the ALR was subdivided from the parent parcel and is subject of the non-farm use application. 
The property lost its farm status in 2004. Duggan Brook (a tributary to Mill Creek) runs through 
this property and expands into Simpsons Pond. Between 2003 and 2006, a large portion of 
Simpsons Pond was illegally filled in and consequently the wetland re-established further east on 
the property. There are no records of any approval being granted and there was more than one 
stop-work order issued in relation to the work. 

33



A15-0007 – Page 2 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1: 2000 Aerial Photo 

 

Figure 2: 2000 Aerial Photo with subdivision plan 
overlay 

 

Figure 3: 2003 Aerial Photo 

 

Figure 4: 2006 Aerial Photo 

 

34



A15-0007 – Page 3 

 
 

  

 

 

Following the wetland infill, Mr. Dureault proposed a non-farm use for an RV park on the portions 
of the land that were filled in. At the time, staff recommended against any proposal and 
suggested that the owner remove the illegally placed soil and recreate the wetland. An official 
application was never submitted. 

The new owner (Ms. Brenda Dureault) has also applied to have a non-farm use and staff informed 
the applicant that a bona-fided farm must exist prior to any non-farm use consideration. 
Currently, the farming activities are chickens and hay. The big impediment to farming on this 
property is the increasingly high water table.  

The Zoning Bylaw requires a property with agri-tourist accommodations to have farm status. The 
Zoning Bylaw further states that the agri-tourist income has to be accessory to the farm income. 

In 1999 and 2000 a rezoning and ALR exclusion application was approved for the commercial and 
industrial portions of the parent parcel. However, resolution #640/99 to exclude 10.4 ha was 
approved subject to the applicant submitting a drainage plan to address the drainage problems 
and to ensure that the commercial / industrial development does not create further drainage 
problems on adjacent ALR lands. Further, the resolution stated buffering to the ALR lands was to 
occur. 

Due to the high water table and drainage issues, the current owner decided to develop an agri-
forestry operation. To date, over 1500 trees (nut, fruit, Christmas, and native) have been 
planted. Crops such as garlic, edamame beans, melons, broccoli, cucumber, herbs, tomatoes, 
strawberries, and flowers have been added for farm gate sales in addition to the existing egg 
sales. Public tours, workshops and children’s summer camps are ongoing. 

Figure 5: 2009 Aerial Photo 

 

Figure 6: 2012 Aerial Photo 

 

35



A15-0007 – Page 4 

 
 

 

 

4.0 Community Planning 

Both the City’s Agriculture Plan and the OCP recommend general non-support with respect to 
non-farm uses. At this time City Staff and Council seek a recommendation on the proposed non-
farm use after taking into account all relevant considerations.  Relevant information includes, 
but is not limited to the nature of the subject property (including adjacent and surrounding land 
uses), the historic use of the subject property, the agricultural viability of the subject property, 
the potential impact on adjacent and nearby properties and existing City policies.   

The AAC is also asked to consider and make recommendations which reflect the scenario as 
proposed.  The AAC should consider the impacts of a non-agricultural use and suggest mitigation 
opportunities should the ALC choose to support the proposed exclusion. 

The projected agricultural income will be similar or greater than the projected agri-tourism 
income. However, the current farm income is much lower than the projected agri-tourism 
income. Agri-tourism uses are meant to be accessory to farming use and not the primary income 
generator. As per OCP policy, agri-tourism operations are only meant to aid a bona fide farm and 
should not be approved until the annual farming income can be proven to be greater than the 
projected agri-tourism income and the property receives farm 
status. This should ensure farming remains the primary use 
even if there is a time gap between plantings and income 
generation. 

Further, there are two other outstanding enforcement issues. 
There is a second dwelling on the property and there is an 
industrial encroachment onto ALR land. During the industrial 
subdivision of the parent parcel, the City of Kelowna issued a 
building permit to relocate a second home on the subject 
property. Under current regulations second dwellings on ALR 
parcels can only be used for farm help. As Staff understand it, 
the second dwelling on 395 Hereron Rd is used for residential 
purposes and is not limited to farm help. 

 

Image 1: July 25
th

 2015 Photo of Agrofroestry 

 

Image 2: July 25
th

 2015 Photo of Duggan Creek, 
adjacent hay field and two dwellings. 

 

Two Dwellings 

Industrial 
Encroachment Area 

36



A15-0007 – Page 5 

 
 

 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located: within the Agricultural Land Reserve, adjacent to the municipal 
boundary and adjacent to the Kelowna Springs Golf Course. The Future Land Use of the property 
is Resource Protection Area (REP), it is zoned A1 – Agriculture 1, and it is outside of the 
Permanent Growth Boundary.  

Parcel Summary – 395 Hereron Road: 

 Parcel Size: 10.3 ha (25.45 acres) 
 Elevation: 402 metres to 405 metres above sea level (masl) (approx.) 

Map 1 - Neighbourhood 

 

Zoning and land uses adjacent to the property are as follows: 

Table 1:  Zoning and Land Use of Adjacent Property 

Direction Zoning ALR Land Use 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes Sod Farm 

South 
A1 – Agriculture 1 & 

I2 – General Industrial 
No Wetland and Industrial 

East 

Parcel is split zoned between 

P3- Parks and Open Space & 

Unzoned portions  

No  Golf Course  

West I2 – General Industrial No Industrial 

Subject Property  
395 Hereron Rd  
 

ALR 

Kelowna Springs 
Golf Course 

37



A15-0007 – Page 6 

 
 

 

4.2 Agricultural Land Capability 

The Agricultural Land Capability of the subject property is divided roughly with mineral soils 
dominating the top 45.1% and organic soils dominate the bottom 53%. A sliver of mineral soils 
also occurs in the southwest corner of the property, representing 1.9% (see attached). 

The top mineral soil polygon has an agricultural land capability rating of 70% Class 6 capability, 
with limitations for excessive water and salinity. This area of the property is improvable to Class 
4, with some limitations during the growing season due to high ground water and a root 
restricting layer. This area of the property is 30% Class 4 agricultural capability, with some 
limitations due to excess water during the growing season. This portion is improvable to Class 2 
capability, with occasional occurrence of water during the growing season.  

The southern polygon, comprising 53% of the property, has 70% of organic soils with a Class 4 
capability, with limitations of excess water. This is improvable to Class 2, with a limitation of 
occasional excess water during the growing season. This polygon is comprised of 30% of Class 5 
agricultural capability, with a limitation of excess water. With improvements, this can be 
improved to Class 3 with occasional occurrence of excess water during the growing season, and 
some fertility limitations. 

The small sliver, 1.9% of the property, near the southwest corner is comprised of Class 4 
agricultural capability, improvable to Class 3 with a limitation due to a root restricting layer. 

Class 1 to Class 3 soils are considered rare in the Okanagan. 

4.3 Soil Capability 

The property has a variety of soil types, roughly divided by the northern polygon of 45.1% of the 
property and the southern polygon of 53% of the property. A sliver of Okanagan (O) soils occurs at 
the southwest.  

The northern polygon has a combination of Summerland (SR) and Guisachan (GN) soils.  
Summerland soils are moderately textured, relatively stone-free overlays that range in depth 
from 60 to 100 cm. They vary from silty loam to clay, and are imperfectly to poorly drained, with 
high water tables generally within 75 cm of the surface.  Suitable crops include annual vegetable 
crops, blueberries, cereals, corn, forage. For improved sites, pears and strawberries are possible. 

Guisachan soils are moderately coarse textured, stone free, typically 30 – 100 cm deep and 
overlay course fluvial fan deposits. The textures are silty and sandy loam. Groundwater is near 
the surface during the winter and decreases through the year, with the lowest during the 
autumn. The soils are suited to crops that are not sensitive to occasional high groundwater. 
These crops range from vegetable crops to hay and pasture.  

The southern portion of the property is a combination of Rumohr (RH) soils and Tanaka (TA). 
Rumohr soils are semi-decomposed organic deposits which vary in depth from 20 to 160 cm or 
more. The soils are poorly drained, and are subject to a high groundwater table, and require 

38



A15-0007 – Page 7 

 
 

drainage for maximum crop production. Suitable crops include pasture or single cut hay without 
drainage. With drainage, climatically adapted crops can produce acceptable yields.1 

Tanaka soils are moderately textured, gravel free fluvial fan deposits. The textures range from 
sandy loam to silty loam. They are poorly drained, and have a high water holding capacity. The 
water table fluctuates between the surface and 1.5 metre depth.  Depressions are susceptible to 
flooding. They are limited to agricultural uses that can tolerate high groundwater. Suitable crops 
include pasture and hay, turf, field crops and vegetables.   

There is a sliver of Okanagan (O) soils at the southwest portion of the property. These are part of 
the Rumohr soils group, described above. 

5.0 Public Notification 

Notification is not required for non-farm use applications to the ALC. However, if the non-farm 
use is successful the applicant still requires a rezoning to permit the agri-tourism accommodation 
and public notification is a requirement of the rezoning process.  

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Land Use Planner 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  Todd Cashin, Rural and Suburban Planning Manager 
 
 
Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Soils and Agricultural Capability Maps 
Soils and Agricultural Capability Legends 
Subject Property Map 
Applicant ALC Act Application for Exclusion - Supplementary Information 
ALC Resolution #640/99 

                                                
1
 Ministry of Agriculture, 1994. Soil Management Handbook for the Okanagan and Similkameen Valleys. 

http://www.agf.gov.bc.ca/resmgmt/publist/600Series/610000-6_Soil_Mgmt_Handbook_Okanagan.pdf 

 

 

 

39

http://www.agf.gov.bc.ca/resmgmt/publist/600Series/610000-6_Soil_Mgmt_Handbook_Okanagan.pdf


40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 1 

 

 
 
 

Agricultural Advisory Committee 
Minutes 

 
 
Date: 
Location: 

Thursday, November 12, 2015 
Council Chamber 
City Hall, 1435 Water Street 

 
Committee Members  
Present: 

Domenic Rampone, Ed Schiller, Jeff Ricketts (Alternate), John 
Janmaat, Keith Duhaime, Pete Spencer, Yvonne Herbison, Jill 
Worboys (Interior Health) 

 
Committee Members  
Absent: 

Tarsem Goraya and Kevin Daniels (Alternate) 

 
Staff Present Urban & Rural Planning Manager, Todd Cashin; Planner, Melanie 

Steppuhn and Legislative Systems Coordinator, Sandi Horning 
 
(* denotes partial attendance) 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Opening remarks by the Chair regarding conduct of the meeting were read.  The Chair 
reviewed the Terms of Reference for the Committee. 
 
2. Applications for Consideration 
 

2.1 1040 Old Vernon Road, A15-0010 - 0698329 BC Ltd. (Benson Law LLP) 
 
Staff: 
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application before the Committee;  
- The applicant is requesting permission from the Agricultural Land Commission to exclude 

the property from the ALR under Section 30(1) of the ALC Act. 
- The property is located on Old Vernon Road, west of Morrison Road, in the Rutland Sector 

of the City. 
- The property is outside the Permanent Growth Boundary, and is adjacent Regional District 

lands to the north, and to the east, opposite Old Vernon Road. 
- The property is in the ALR, surrounded by properties in the ALR within the City of Kelowna 

to the west, south and east. ALR properties are adjacent also within the Regional District, 
to the north, not shown here. 

- The property is within the Resource Protection Area, surrounded by others in the Resource 
Protection Area. There is Single / Two Unit Residential to the southeast. 

- Prior to the enactment of the ALR, a small sawmill existed on the property. Over time, its 
footprint expanded to the adjacent property to the west and to the east. In 2000, the ALC 
retroactively gave permission to allow an existing recycling operation on the property, for 
construction waste products such as concrete and wood. This was allowed with the 

61



 2 

 

conditions of fencing and the reclamation of Lot 1 back to agriculture, to the east.  In 
1985, the ALC gave the permission to expand, to include the adjacent property to the 
west, 982 Old Vernon Road. 

- The Agricultural Capability: 
- Provincial Rating Class 5 (Improvable to Class 1); 
- 2013 Report for 982 Old Vernon Road (not the subject property): The improved ratings 

increased to Class 1 (northwest corner) to 3A (south and central area) with irrigation; 
- Conclusion of report: rehabilitation costs prohibit soil based agriculture on 982 Old 

Vernon Road. 
- Provided rehabilitation quote/costs and the conclusion: rehabilitation costs prohibit soil 

based agriculture on 982 Old Vernon Road (Lot 3). 
- 982 Old Vernon Road Agrology Report - Non-Soil Based Agriculture. Soil bound livestock 

(e.g. Grazing) – cost prohibitive 
- Report cited the ability to install buffers as benefit to  farming 
- Conclusion of report: rehabilitation costs prohibit all Non-soil based agriculture on 982 

Old Vernon Road. 
- Public Notification: 

- posted signage on their property of the application for exclusion; 
- advertised the application in the Kelowna Capital News (July 17th and July 24th, 2015); 

and 
- sent registered mail to all neighbours immediately adjacent their property. 

- City Council is asking the Agricultural Advisory Committee for your recommendation for 
this application with respect to the City of Kelowna and ALC regulations and policies.  
Considerations should be given to agriculture capability, as well as the potential impacts 
to agriculture, both on this property and any potential impacts to surrounding agricultural 
parcels. 

- Responded to questions from Committee members. 
 
Brett Sagquin, Applicant's Representative 
- Provided a brief history of the subject property. 
- This property has not been farmed since at least the 1950's.; however it was included in 

the ALR back in 1974-1976. 
- Why a property operating a sawmill was part of the ALR in the first place is not known. 

Since the ALR, the property has never been used for agricultural purposes. 
- This process started back in 2006, prior to the owner actually having purchased the 

property. 
- Displayed a sketch of the proposed operation on the subject property and confirmed that 

the owner is proposing a recycling facility. 
- Contacted the ALC and was made aware of the conditions required in order to have the 

property excluded from the ALR. 
- The ALC approved of the recycling facility on 1040 Old Vernon Road. 
- Displayed a copy of the ALC's letter advising of their approval.  As a result of the ALC 

letter, he completed the purchase of the property and resumed the recycling operation. 
- Was then advised by the City that the non-conforming use could no longer exist as 

recycling operation had ceased on the property for a period of 6 months. 
- Displayed a copy of the letter from the City and advised that the ALC then issued a stop 

work order. 
- The events have led to this application before the Committee today. 
- An OCP amendment will also be required along with the exclusion of the property. 
- Advised that the owner is relying heavily on the agrologist report as the properties are 

identical. 
- The sawmill operation started on Lot 2, was expanded on Lot 2 and was then moved to Lot 

3. 
- The owner suggests that Lot 2 is in worse shape that what was suggested. 
- The owner has tried to remediate the property to the tune of $25,000.00. 
- There have also been a few spontaneous combustion fires resulting in the owner having to 

purchase firefighting equipment. 
- The owner has also fenced the property at considerable cost. 

62



 3 

 

- Asking for an exclusion as the cost to remediate the property would be in excess of $1 
Million. 

- There is potential contamination of the ground water and soil on the property.  The cost 
of future improvements does not take into account the true cost of remediation. 

- Advised that BC Farm Assessment Office shares the concerns of the Agrologist: Can the 
property actually achieve 'farm classification’? 

- Referred to parts of the Committee Report and believes that this property qualifies as an 
extra-ordinary circumstance and should be excluded from the ALR. 

- The owner purchased the property in the hopes of cleaning up the site and operating a 
recycling facility. 

- The new zone of I2 would provide a buffer between the neighbouring properties and the 
sawmill property. 

- The previous owners, the Russos, are unaware of any farming on the property prior to 
1950. 

- This would not set a precedent as it is unique as far as viable agricultural property. 
- Requesting support for the exclusion. 
 
AAC/Applicant Discussion: 
- The Applicant responded to questions from the Committee members. 
- The applicant advised that if exclusion is granted, the proposal is to operate the land as a 

recycling facility. 
- Advised that the owner had discussions with the City for monetary reimbursement to 

assist with the removal of the waste.  These were verbal and nothing has been put in 
writing. 

- Confirmed the Applicant’s decision to go with exclusion rather than non-farm use. 
- Reconfirmed that the property has never used for agricultural purposes. 
- Advised that the previous owners, the Kandolas, investigated using the property in other 

ways that would benefit agriculture such as composting for crops, greenhouse uses etc; 
however those operations would not generate enough revenue to rehab the property. 

- The owner has been in the construction demolition business for the past 37 years. 
- Advised that it was the previous owners, the Kandolas, who ceased operating the sawmill 

on the property which is the rationale for the grandfathered right to the non-conforming 
use being lost; 

 
AAC/Staff Discussion: 
- Confirmed that an agrologist report was not conducted on the subject property; however 

an agricultural assessment can be requested. 
 
Moved By Domenic Rampone/Seconded By Jeff Ricketts 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council NOT support an 
application to the Agricultural Land Commission under Section 30(1) of the 
Agricultural Land Commission Act for an "exclusion" from the Agricultural Land 
Reserve on the subject property at 1040 Old Vernon Road. 

 
Carried 

Ed Schiller – Opposed. 
 
ANECTODOTAL COMMENT: 
The Agricultural Advisory Committee did not support the exclusion as the property has been 
in the ALR since 1974 and suggested that the City assist the landlord with any grants that may 
be available to assist with the rehabilitation of the site.  The Committee recognizes the 
legacy of the property and encourages the City to work with the Applicant to address the 
costs of remediation. 
 

2.2 2075 KLO Road, Rezoning Application No. Z15-0045  and Text Amendment 
No. TA15-0010- Tyler Linttell 

 

63



 4 

 

Staff: 
- Distributed a handout from the Applicant. 
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application before the Committee. 
- The Application is to rezone the subject property to facilitate the development of RV sites 

on the subject property. As well as amend the A1 zone to increase the allowable number 
of RV sites from 5 to 10. 

- Subject parcel is located between KLO Road and Mission Creek in the South Pandosy – KLO 
sector of Kelowna. 

- Subject parcel is in the ALR, with neighbouring properties in the ALR. 
- Future land use in the area is Resource Protection, Park, Recreation and Single Two Unit 

Residential. 
- The subject parcel is 14.2 acres (5.75 ha) in size and adjacent to KLO Road and Mission 

Creek Greenway. 
- Existing conditions on the site include approximately 3.1 ha in hay, principal dwelling, 

accessory building, barn, tennis court and an ornamental pond. 
- The highlighted structures and ornamental landscape areas are approximately 4,900 m2, 

with the front lawn being 2,962 m2. 
- Homeplating principles outline that the total area of all agriculture and non agricultural 

buildings should take up 3,600m2. The square shown on the aerial photo which includes a 
portion of the front lawn, tennis courts, ornamental pond, house and detached garage is 
8,961 m2. 

- Including the barn and driveway / parking areas the total homeplate is 13,193 m2. 
- Agri-tourist accommodation is a Permitted Non Farm Use by the ALC. The use is not a 

designate Farm Use and may be restricted or prohibited by local governments. 
- ALC requires the following items to be met in order to permit agri-tourist accommodation: 

The property must have farm status, the accommodation must be accessory to 
agriculture, and a maximum of 10 accommodation units. 

- The Ministry of Agriculture has recently proposed the following requirements: 
- Defining “Accessory” which includes looking at farm income vs. non-farm income. 

Recommendations that local governments restrict unit amounts on smaller lots. And 
that homeplating principals are to be utilized. 

- The City of Kelowna has taken steps since 2009 to restrict Agri-tourism Accommodation as 
it was being abused.   Major concerns from neighbours, staff, and Kelowna residence 
were: 
- Year round & long term rentals; 
- Becoming the Principal Use on the property – farming was neglected or minimal; 
- Nuisance to both adjacent agriculture & residential lands; 
- Septic failures; 
- Land value speculation jeopardizing future farmers; 
- Storage of RV’s. 

- The City of Kelowna, working with Council and Residents worked towards restrictions.  
These included: 
- Agritourist accommodation is only permitted as a Secondary Use 
- Defining Agri-tourist accommodation as the seasonable availability of short term 

accommodation for tourists on a farm, orchard, or vineyard in association with an agri-
tourism activity which is subordinate and secondary to the principal agricultural use. 
Typical uses include but are not limited to seasonal farm cabins, and campsites / 
recreational vehicle sites. Seasonal, in this instance, means the accommodation must 
be available for use only between April 1 and October 31 of each year. 

- Rezoning to permit the use – any agri-tourism accommodations must be considered by 
Staff, AAC, and Council to ensure the use is appropriate on the land and meets current 
bylaws. 
- Must accompany agri-tourism; 
- Maximum number of accommodation units based on parcel size – this is to help 

eliminate accommodations being principal use; 
- Homeplating principals; 
- Landscape buffering. 

64



 5 

 

- The proposed rezoning and text amendment are to facilitate 10 rv sites on the subject 
parcel.  A text amendment is required as current zoning bylaw limits the number of 
accommodation units based on parcel size with the intent of agri-tourism as a secondary 
use on the property, ensuring agriculture as principle use. 

- The applicant is proposing to increase farming if rezoning and the ability to develop 10 RV 
sites is granted.  The proposed increase in farming would create an agri-tourism 
environment that will warrant agri-tourism accommodation. At this time a hay field is the 
sole means of agriculture. 

- The applicant will also be required to obtain a variance in order to locate the RV sites 
more than 30.0 m from the principal dwelling. This slide shows current homeplating 
principals, with the intent of keeping non-agriculture buildings within 60 m of a fronting 
road or property line. 

- Ten RV sites on the subject property with current farming would not meet the bylaw in 
the following ways: 
1. Agri-tourism does not exist – there is no agriculture that would draw public to the 

property to enjoy agriculture; 
2. The principal use would be RV sites.  10 RV sites would out perform the existing hay 

field in income, staffing requirements, visitors to the property, and infrastructure 
(water, electricity, power); 

3. The allowable accommodation units is 5 for a parcel of this size; 
4. Homeplate principles are not met as the proposed location of the RV Sites is well 

outside the 30.0 m boundary of the principal residence. 
- The applicant is addressing these items by proposing an increase of agriculture, an 

Amendment to the A1t zone to increase the number of units from 5 to 10, and applying for 
a variance to allow the units to be farther than 30.0 m from the principal residence. 

- The soils on the property are Class 4W & 5W with improved ratings of Class 2. There is 
excess water, including high groundwater. The soil is common with the floodplain of 
Mission Creek. Overall, the soil and conditions in this area are suitable for forage crops.  
To date, no plan as to how fruit trees as shown on the proposed plan would be viable on 
the land. 

- The applicant completed a neighbourhood consultation including information sheets to 
adjacent land owners and a public information session. Support and non-support were 
noted. 

- Non-support voiced concerns including an increase in large vehicle traffic on an already 
busy road with sightline issues. Noise. Neighbours along mission creek were concerned 
with views from their yards. The possibility of expanding to more than 10 RV sites. 

- Supporters liked the location of the RV sites in the rear of the property. 
- Responded to questions from the Committee. 
 
Tyler Linttell, Applicant  
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the agri-tourism proposal. 
- The proposal will provide for local food production and more RV accommodation, 

particularly during the summer months. 
- Noted the previous plan and provided an overview of the revised plan. 
- Advised that he has been in contact with BC Tree Fruits and Richard Bullock and has been 

advised that the only orchard that would likely succeed on the site would be pears.  It 
should be noted that pears not immediately viable and would take 8-10 years to be viable. 

- A market garden or berry farm would be more viable. 
- Provided an overview of the type of market garden he is proposing. 
- Wise Earth Farms has committed to a partnership with the proposed market garden. 
- Advised that raspberries would be planted as part of the border of the property. 
- Advised that the chickens will be separate from the garden and the other agricultural 

areas. 
- The front lawn of the property is ready to be planted. 
- Spoke to the rationale for the proposed RV sites and confirmed that the proposal includes 

full hook-ups and no tenters. 
- Prepared to meet both ALC and City regulations. 
- Have 2 letters of support from adjacent neighbours. 

65



 6 

 

- Provided an overview of the poultry side of the proposal. 
- Have constructed an extensive chicken coup for the laying hens with the construction of 

the meat bird coup is in progress. 
- Provided an overview of the apiary (bees). 
- Made reference to an email with Martin Collins of the ALC and confirmed that the site 

meets all ALC regulations and has farm status. 
 
AAC/Applicant Discussion: 
- Responded to questions from the Committee members. 
- None of the property has ever been sprayed, except for the front lawn.  The entire hay 

field has never been sprayed. 
- Part of the property cannot be certified organic, but the majority of the property may be. 
- Advised that the ALC is okay with this proposal without a bond; however City staff is not 

willing to accept a bond to ensure agriculture. 
- The RV park will assist in supplementing the farm's income.  Believes that RV parks are not 

viable on commercial land, but are viable on agricultural land. 
- Advised that there is a crop-share agreement with Wise Earth Farms. 
- Indicated the location of the existing sewer line and the proposed expansion to the RV 

site. 
- Advised that the proposed RV site is currently not producing any agriculture. 
- The property is part of the City water utility. 
 
AAC/Staff Discussion 
- Spoke to the difference between the ALC's regulations and the City's regulations regarding 

agri-tourism. 
- Spoke to bylaw enforcement challenges. 
- Confirmed that 28 acres would allow 10 RV sites if the existing parcel was consolidated 

with the adjacent property. 
 
Moved By Ed Schiller/Seconded By Keith Duhaime 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council support Rezoning 
Application No. Z15-0045 changing the zoning classification located on 2075 KLO Road, 
Kelowna, B.C., from the A1 – Agriculture zone to the A1t – Agriculture 1 with Agri-
tourist Accommodation. 
 

Defeated 
Domenic Rampone, Jeff Ricketts, John Janmaat, Keith 
Duhaime, Peter Spencer and Yvonne Herbison - Opposed 

 
ANECTODOTAL COMMENT 
The Agricultural Advisory Committee did not support the application as it is contrary to the 
policies and bylaws of the City of Kelowna. Historically RV sites are not very compatible with 
agriculture and do not benefit agriculture.  The Members are pleased with the enthusiasm by 
the Applicant and admire the Applicant's plans; however the plan is contrary to City bylaws.  
The Members feel the proposal would be more appealing if there was more agriculture on the 
site then envisioned as they believe that agriculture should come first and then agri-tourism. 
 
The meeting recessed at 8:29 p.m.  The meeting reconvened at 8:37 p.m. 
 

2.3 4275 Goodison Road, A15-0011 - Kristi Caldwell 
 
Committee Member Pete Spencer declared a conflict of interest as he has a business 
relationship with the property owners and left the meeting at 8:38 p.m. 
 
Staff: 
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application before the Committee. 

66



 7 

 

- The applicant is seeking approval from the Agricultural Land Commission for a “non-farm 
use” to permit wedding ceremonies and a distillery using primarily BC grains on the 
subject property. 

- Staff notes that since the ALC Act Amendment of June 15th, 2015, distilleries are a 
designated ‘Farm Use’ if 50% of the product is grown on the farm. In this case, the 
flavourings, such as juniper and lavender, will be grown on the farm, but the bulk of the 
products will be grains produced from other BC Farms. As such, the applicants are 
applying for the Non-Farm Use to allow a distillery for these products. 

- In addition, the ALC has advised us that ‘Wedding Ceremonies’ are not a Farm Use or 
Permitted Use in the ALR, and as such, require an approval from the ALC. 

- The subject property is approximately 2.5 ha (6.09 acres) and is located along Goodison 
Road, in the Southeast Kelowna Sector of the City, west of June Springs Road, south of 
Mathews Road. 

- The property has an existing dwelling and 5 various outbuildings. Several of the 
outbuildings house vintage farm equipment, which is used for agri-tourism tours. Also on 
the property are a shop and a barn. 

- The property is located in the ALR, surrounded by ALR properties. 
- The property is within the Resource Protection Area, surrounded by other properties in 

the Resource Protection Area. 
- The wedding ceremonies are proposed for the front lawn of the residence (marked “A” in 

this plan). No new parking area is proposed as part of this application. Since taking over 
the farm in 2014, the applicants have started a market garden, floriculture, juniper and 
lavender plantings for the distillery, and a chicken and egg operation. Proposed additional 
farm activities for 2016 include acquiring three head of cattle and establishing honey 
production. The chickens are kept in a mobile chicken coop, which will share the pasture 
with the cattle. 

- The property contains 60% Class 4AT and 40% Class 5TA Agriculture Capability 
- Harrland soils are moderately coarse textured glacial till, typically capped sandy eolian 

material. 
- Paradise soils have developed a sandy veneer between 25 and 60 cm thick, overlying 

gravelly fluvialglacial deposits. 
- Policy .7 Non-farm Uses. Support non-farm use applications on agricultural lands only 

where approved by the ALC and where the proposed uses: 
o consistent with Zoning Bylaw and OCP 
o  provide significant benefits to agriculture 
o can be accommodated using existing municipal infrastructure; 
o  minimize impacts on productive land 
o  will not preclude the future use of land for agriculture; and 
o Will not impact adjacent farm operations. 

- City Council is asking the Agricultural Advisory Committee for your recommendation for 
this application with respect to the City of Kelowna and ALC regulations and policies.  
Considerations should be given to agriculture capability, as well as the potential impacts 
to agriculture, both on this property and any potential impacts to surrounding agricultural 
parcels. 

 
Kristi Caldwell, Applicant 
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation and provided an overview of the history of the 

property. 
- The property was purchased by her parents in 1990.  After her parents passed away, the 

property was left to her, her husband and her daughters. 
- Provided an overview of the proposed farming operation and non-farm use. 
- Provided an overview of the proposed agri-tourism activities for the site.  Confirmed that 

only wedding ceremonies are proposed and that there will not be any evening receptions.  
The wedding ceremonies would take place on existing lawn behind the house not on any 
agriculture property. 

- Committed to using 100% BC products in the distillery process. 
- Held a neighbourhood open house and obtained unanimous support from the Goodison 

Road residents and some surrounding areas. 

67



 8 

 

-  BC Assessment has confirmed the retention of the farm status for the next year. 
 
AAC/Applicant Discussion: 
- Responded to questions from the Committee members. 
- Primary products at the start will be vodka & gin. 
- Advised that her parents owned a steel fabricating business and that the farm was not 

their primary income source. 
- This is more than a hobby farm than a primary income farm. 
- Trying to maximize the agricultural viability of the land and have the sole owners of the 

property since 2014. 
- Would be willing to conduct soil testing to determine the agricultural viability of the 

lands. 
 
AAC/Staff Discussion: 
- A non-farm use covenant could be registered on title so that if the property is sold, the 

non-farm use would cease.  This could be a condition of approval. 
 
Moved By Yvonne Herbison/Seconded By Domenic Rampone 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council supports an 
application to the Agricultural Land Commission under Section 20(3) of the Agricultural 
Land Commission Act for a "non-farm use" within the Agricultural Land Reserve on the 
subject property at 4275 Goodison Road to have a distillery with primarily non-farm 
products and to host wedding ceremonies. 

 
Carried 

Jeff Ricketts – Opposed. 
 
ANECTODOTAL COMMENT: 
The Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that a covenant be registered on title to 
ensure that the distillery will be decommissioned and the wedding operations ceased once the 
property is sold (non-farm use should be tied to the ownership of the property) and the 
footprint of the existing buildings not be expanded. 
 
Pete Spencer rejoined the meeting at 9:32 p.m. 
 

2.4 3240 Pooley Road, A15-0012 - Wyn Lewis 
 
Staff: 
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the application before the Committee. 
- The applicant is seeking approval from the Agricultural Land Commission for a “non-farm 

use” to permit build a parking lot for an existing winery and special events, and for a 
Frisbee Golf area on the property. 

- The ALC has advised us that when agriculture is removed for a parking lot or other non-
farm use, a Non-Farm Use approval is required from the ALC. 

- In addition, The Discussion Paper on Agri-tourism and Farm Retail Sales from September 
2015 indicates that commercial banquets, celebrations and any other commercial 
assembly activity require ALC approval. 

- The subject property is approximately 4.6 ha (11.3 acres) and is located along Pooley 
Road, in the Southeast Kelowna Sector of the City, east of McCulloch Road. 

- The property has an existing dwelling a wine tasting building. According to the 
application, the property currently has: 

o 6 acres of grapes, 2 acres of apples, 2 acres of home, 1 acre for the winery , 
05. Acre for access roads and parking. 

- The property is within the Resource Protection Area, surrounded by other properties in 
the Resource Protection Area. 

- The property is located in the ALR, surrounded by ALR properties. 

68



 9 

 

- The request includes a parking lot area. The applicant has indicates that they experience 
overflow parking onto adjacent roadways, especially during special events such as 
Shakespeare plays. The plan, attached, also indicates a Frisbee Golf area. 

- In 2012, the tasting room was located in an existing building. Vineyard occupied the 
southeast corner. 

- In 2014 and 2015, the tasting room was expanded, and a lawn area located in the 
southeast corner of the property. 

- The plan will reduce the size of the existing parking (now 20 car capacity) down to 10 
handicapped parking spaces. They propose to replace 500 square metres of existing crush 
with asphalt, and plant grass on 400 square metres of the remaining existing parking. 

- The new parking area will be 1500 square metres of crush. The existing hedges will 
remain. The parking is planned in an area where the existing vines have been damaged by 
frost, where no crop was grown in 2014 or 2015. 

- The proposal includes interplanting a portion of the existing vineyard, by adding an extra 
row of vined between the current 12 ft spaced vines. This spacing of 6 foot vines has been 
done successfully on the north planting on the property. They estimate a 75% increase in 
yield with this approach. 

- The majority of the subject property contains primarily Class 5A Agriculture Capability. 
Class 5A has limitations to crops based on aridity, due to either soil permeability or 
climate or both, and is considered improvable with the addition of irrigation. 

- With improvements, this area can be improved to Class *3 capability, which refers to 
specific capability with respect to grapes and tree fruits. 

- Policy .7 Non-farm Uses. Support non-farm use applications on agricultural lands only 
where approved by the ALC and where the proposed uses: 

o consistent with Zoning Bylaw and OCP 
o  provide significant benefits to agriculture 
o can be accommodated using existing municipal infrastructure; 
o  minimize impacts on productive land 
o  will not preclude the future use of land for agriculture; and 
o Will not impact adjacent farm operations. 

- City Council is asking the Agricultural Advisory Committee for your recommendation for 
this application with respect to the City of Kelowna and ALC regulations and policies.  
Considerations should be given to agriculture capability, as well as the potential impacts 
to agriculture, both on this property and any potential impacts to surrounding agricultural 
parcels. 

 
Moved By Domenic Rampone/Seconded By Jeff Ricketts 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council NOT support an 
application to the Agricultural Land Commission under Section 20(3) of the Agricultural 
Land Commission Act for a "non-farm use" within the Agricultural Land Reserve on the 
subject property at 3240 Pooley Road to build a parking lot for the Winery, special 
events at the Winery and for a proposed Frisbee golf area. 

  
Carried 

 
ANECTODOTAL COMMENT: 
The Agricultural Advisory Committee did not support the application as the proposed parking, 
special events and Frisbee golf do not benefit agriculture.  Council should review the types of 
events that are occurring on agricultural lands and establish policy and guidelines to enforce 
infractions.  Council should consider enforcement rather than doing and asking for forgiveness 
later.  The Committee believes that there is no clear benefit to agriculture. 
  

69



 10 

 

 
3. Minutes 
 
Moved By Ed Schiller/Seconded By Domenic Rampone 
 

THAT the Minutes of the October 8, 2015 Agricultural Advisory Committee meeting be 
adopted. 

 
Carried 

 
4. Referrals 
 
There were no referrals. 
 
5. Old Business 
 

5.1 Ministry of Agriculture - Discussion Paper on Agri-tourist Accommodation 
and Farm Retail Sales 

 
Staff: 
- Displayed a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the Minister's Bylaw Standards on Agri-

tourist accommodation and farm retail sales. 
- Provided an overview of the discussion paper. 
 
AAC Discussion: 
- The Ministry needs to develop a way to audit agri-tourist accommodation and create some 

sort of auditing process 
- It was suggested that business license fee should be increased to cover the cost of 

enforcement. 
- Experience has shown that the people that are operating the RV sites are not necessarily 

farming the land resulting in a further deterioration of agriculture. 
- The Ministry needs to find ways to encourage young farmers. 
 
Staff: 
- Provided clarification with respect to ALC enforcement and City enforcement. 
 
AAC Discussion: 
- Noted that there are issues with respect to monitoring/enforcement on agricultural 

property and the Ministry needs to deal with the issue. 
- The Ministry needs to ensure that agri-tourism is truly supplemental to farming, 

specifically RV parks, and should tie agri-tourism activity directly to farming. 
- Agri-tourism should be tourism that involves agriculture. 
- The Ministry needs to find ways to ensure that the resources are adequate to enforce 

regulations. 
- Suggested a business license fee or some sort of tax that would be allocated to 

enforcement.  The ALC should maybe be charging a fee for non-farm uses as well as 
establish an audit process. 

 
6. New Business 
 

6.1 City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan 
 
Staff: 
- Advised that the Policy & Planning Department is working on a terms of reference for a 

new Agricultural Plan and is considering applying for funding.  If the City gets the funding, 
the plan will move forward. 

  

70



 11 

 

 
6.2 Agriculture Adaptation Workshop - Agriculture and Climate Change 

 
Staff: 
- Provided information on the upcoming workshop. 
 
7. Next Meeting 
 
The next Committee meeting has been scheduled for December 10, 2015. 
 
8. Termination of Meeting 
 
The Chair declared the meeting terminated at 11:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
John Janmaat, Chair 

 
/acm/slh 

71


	Agenda
	2.1 A15-0013 AAC Report.pdf
	2.1 A15-0013 Schedule A - Plan.pdf
	2.1 A15-0013 Subject Property Map.pdf
	2.1 A15-0013 2115 Rutland Rd - Land.pdf
	2.1 A15-0013 2115 Rutland Rd - Soil .pdf
	2.1 A15-0013 Application - Supplementary Information.pdf
	2.1 A15-0013 ALC Resolution 295 - 2014.pdf
	2.2 Hereron Rd 395 Report A15-0007.pdf
	2.2 Hereron Rd 395 Attach A15-0007.pdf
	2.2 Hereron Rd 395 Title A15-0007.pdf
	3. Post-Meeting Minutes - Agricultural Advisory Committee_Nov12_2015 - English.pdf

